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The Poor

The present system of poor—laws Was commsnce in  Gueen
Elizabeth ' = reign, when overseers of the poor wesres Ty
the erection of poor houses was aubthorised, and house holders
were taxed in order to raise a poor rate. {Townsends Manusl of

Dates).
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Frevious to the passing of the Foor Law Amendment  ~&ct
1834, which brought Board of Guardians into existencs, every
parish had te provide for the wants of its own poorg and &

very costly system it was, leading  toc wmany abusess, and
pauperising the people con account of the indiscriminate way in
which relief was granted. Mr.George Warde MNMorman in & leiter
to the ratepayers of Bromley, written in 13838, show=z= that the
cost of the poor to the parish of Chelsfield on an average
expendituwre for three vears before the passing ¥ the above
Act was E£598; which dropped to £314.4.86. for the first vear
atter the formation of the Umion.

A parish in providing for its poor, generally had a poor
house, althouagh in some cases the poor were boasrded out  with

neighbouring parishes, or given a kind of cut-door relisf as
iz evidenced by the following entries in an old private
account book. 1819 £10.16.0 to poor persons on account of
Chipstead Farish'". In the ame year there waz pxid '"to  Dame

i e
Miles Z2s.&d. per week on account of Horton parish”.

At the time of the passing of the Foor Law Amendmant Act,
Chelsfield owned six Cottages; fowr at Maypole, and two &t
Fratts Beottom. It iz uncertain whether the whole number were
used as Foor-houses, but most of those at Mavpole were used
for this puwpese. Many still living can remember these houses
before they were demcolished {(Sse p.139).

Owing to the absence of the Overszeers books it is
impossible to say how these houses were managed, but avidently
the interests of the parish were well looked after. "Removales’
were constantly obtained, for in the parish chest 15 to be
found an Order dated 1829 for the Removal eof Shtephen Gardner

with Hanmah his wife and Ffouwr children From St.Giles,
Camberwell, to Chelsfield:; and also similar Orders dated 18327
and 1870 {for the Removal o+ cther DEersons. I the
Churchwardens accounts for 1732 are these items. "6 Warvrant
and expenzes on Burnzs accht Fs, order for removing the sames v
Burns 4s.8d. The first copy of Bwns oath lz, the second copy
2=, retaining Counsel on  Buwns accht £1.1.009. FProbably the

above also relates to a poor law case.



at Pratts RBottom were

It seems that the par-ish Cottages
ventually seld in 1853 to Richard Hick

& motht, togeither with a
field namsd Redlands. It is stated in the conditions of sale
that the parish of Chelsfield acaouwired this property in Fih
Ming Charles T reign (1624, In & letter to the Foor  Law
Commissioners at the time of the above =ale, theszsg Cottages
are described as being "four most wretched Cotitages undsr  two
Foofs...All the....Cottages are in a mest dilapidated =tate,
snd guite wunfit to be inhabited by Human Beings'.

Three of the Cottages at Chelsfield were aold iy S
when they were described as "1 Brick, Timber and tiled, and o
Thatched Cottage=, together with about 2ZR IF of Garden land
situate abt Maplested in the parish of Chelsfield”. HWilliam
Warring was the puwrchaser.

Eoard

The firs=st mEPting ot th o
the "White Hart 'Ho i "
M. Beorgs Warde Aarman in the Chair

Relosfield was Mer William Morgan.

On Jurme 24th 18786 the Board re
he sent to the respective Overseesrs
Saturday next the 25th, except in ca
and that the Faupers be referred to

On the following lst of July the Guardians ordered "That
Faupers in Foor-houses ot taken over be removed intoc those
retained”. hus were the duties of =
their poor, transferred from the Oversesrs
the new Bromley Board of Guardians.

+ Chelstiseld

The retaining of the Foor houses of  the three parizshes
already mentioned, was on}y a temporary meEasure; for its
decided that the whole of the poor of  the Uniorn shouwld be
accomnodated in one House.

The Union Worbkhouse at Lock:
this expense somewhat frighten
fimd that ocw Vestry in the
"that it is=s @xpadie:t for the
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1852 % Q"Jw”FiEma .
1854 & AL Harris=e M-
1856 to AuHare il g™ e M
1859 Harriss= Ri
1 ot L K : Hapririsa= M
to 1845 H G M Harrise=® Henry Thompson ™
. H G M Harrise= William RBeardsworth Foxss
371 to lagz da B o Henry Thompson®®
1889 & 1820 W B Fouse Thomas Packman™™
a91 Thomas Figgesee T.W. Walton®?
18922 Thomas Figges*s® Aungustine Giles<®
18923 Edwin Fou<?® Frederick Martin®®
1894 Heniry Thomp=szon Frederick Martin®e
1825 to 18%7 William Elias Bailey®? William Thomas Brocom™=
1898 to 1903 William Elias Bailesy™?3 James Smith™7F
1204 % 1905 James Dowler®e James Smith™=
1706 Joseph W.RowleysSs James Smith®=
1907 to Joseph W.Rowleaey®= George Osgood®e
1. Tenant of Cowrt Lodge Farm, part cwner house at Green St.Green
2. Wa= the owner of Cachkets
e Owrner of Halnutt repd, rnow pulled down (zes p.d0)
4., Was the ten ent of Fax Farm
S Was the owner of "Bhots’, near Faivrtrouaghb.
& Hi=s wife Mary after this date cwned Goddinghorn & Lillies
7. Was the coocupisr of the Hall farm(Chelsfield HalL1™)
3. bas the tenant of a porticon of Catherine Saundsrs estates.
@ See Churchwardesns
10, qomas Skegags of Morstead {(zes p.d4d)
11, Landowner nr.BGoddingteon % Creenstreset Green, his house was
named “Andrews .
2. Tenant of "'The Forcupine Inn and land near it at Richmore Hill
o Owner of Goddington and Lillies
14, Was & small landowner at Pratts Hottom % Richmore Hill.
15, Was the ternant of Mavpole Cottage., and the adigining land
1&. Ouwned "Cross Hall ",
7 HMas the owner of the GQueens Head’', atbt Grzznstrest Grsen.
18, Was the cwner of a house and 1land CdllEd Mewyears
Woodgate situated at the back of Enockholt Chuwroh.
19. Tenant of ‘Gilman Brimstone’ farm
20, Tenant of Morstead and owner of "Sholts Farm'.
21, Owrned & house in the Villags callesd Durtnalls, al=o the
Eleven Oricketters’ . He also kept the Fost Office.
22, Tenarnt of Chelsfield Hall Farm
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Fedigyree  of  the Thomas Famely
Irners o Bucks Crovs (see anle f 185)

Rechand Thernas

m. dnn

M&h\vw.ﬂb& M\\RQSNQL .
(lrn & Eclorcordd y@ . Bucks Cress fo Achard belen

Pichrasil Thoman

Sr .ws&mww Themeao  lwred ot MaidsAene Jan 2. 1751y

M 12 an Hediles 2% Ann Land-
{ I h% ‘Ah\ ..WN-NQVN.NN
i Cmm. Thernas Ball shela

r T Sniditrio ) Lawnl- Theruaa o SAonE Lag 1y 3am iy ab Bl
Bichard S Ttrgared Thomad reliing hernas. Fp s 130y b Depbforel bofl Sefrs yisalTehlys Yo an i abich
‘Mw\»p 15, Ok, \M 1. alZef bferd rofi. 2 marth thez .&un\.Qt,& m.\.\ 2 Jaly R\Wmm&m‘“&\ﬁh i Tu\p A3 Fnasg 190y n\mmu.m\ 7+ Cheartos SR\R\\N\\Q \#&m%uhw \N_WMU.R. e
dicd miiBienl el & (arid m oS- Thonas Hec ks B . buwr 22 harck  1y2) ot L Gt bwr iy July. 1714 ad maidstone
o SEPawlt, «.S&d#.w\ arden by Feed m.\\wﬁ\a i S*&M\D.& a Brevver .\x\,\é- et |
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T Hecks
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Fairtraoagh {2 nob menticned again in the Rolls until the
vear 1814, when it is recorded th Ooeorge FPolhill had aliened
the estate to Georage Townlay. Thus it would s@2enm that  the
propevty had remained in the family of Folly, alias Folhill,
during the whole of this btime. Before 18E8 Gooroge Townley had
s0ld it to George Fhillips, the tenant of MNMorstead, and he
DﬁFted'with it to the Mis Bmith betore the Couwl Baron held
im 18425,

[

Cackets

In 1&12 a M Bowles ownad this farm, wikth  Richard Frith
as tenant, who served the office of Churchwarden here in 1615.
The Couwrt FRoll for 16852 records  the fact that Cackets had
passed from Robert Bowles to John Stevens. It was presented in
1717 that William Clementsz: who held land callsd Cackets was
dead, having left this properity by Will to William Clements
iz son, and Alice his  daaghters that  Alice had married
Richard alk: After the death of Alice thed property  was in
Lhe possession of William Clemants and Richard Balker. Pefore
177% Richard Bakaer bhad aliened the estate to Willizm Shallcorass.
In 1807 Onn Shallorass his  widow was  dead; and  her  sons
William and Robert had inherited it in gavellkind. At this time
Jameas Jaclkson was the tenant. The Roll for 1847 states that
William and Fobert Shallocrass had sold it to Thomnas Burt, who
hefoare 1853 had sold 1t o William Amos, who was 1in possession
of the property in 1859,

Hempstalls

Henry Staple, the heir of Robert Staple, held lands in
Chelsfield, late Pratts, called Hempstalls in the  tenure of
Arnold Sexton in the yvear 1612y and it remained in the same
name, although probably it was nob the same person, up to 1674.
In 17317 one Robert Staple was dead, and had beern suceeded by
his son Thomas Staple, who was also dead in 1739, and had been
followed by his only son William Staple.

William Staple before 1773 had so0ld the property to
Thomas Skeqgs of Norstead. The Court Roll for 1779 records the
fact khat Thomas Skegogs had aliened it to Goadfrey l.e Farrant
and it remained in this family certainly until 1899. AN
account of the Farrant family is given under the Manor of
Norsted(see p.41).



Picketts

Ficketts farm lies chiefly on  the south side of the
Warren road, and abuts upon Greenstreet Green, and several
houses have now been built upon it. In 1612 it belonged to
Richard Daniell, but before 1692 he had sold it to William
Savage who was already dead at that date, and it had descended
th Mrs.Savage and Lewis Smee in right of his wife. A Rental
for 1764 gives Henry Farrant as owner.

The Court Roll for 1717 records that Richard Abbot who
held Ficketts was dead, and that his son John Abbot  had
succeeded. In 1739 this John Abbot was decrased, and the
property had descended to his son John. Before 1773 John Abbot
Jrr had sold it to Edward Hodsoll, and in 1798 his daughter
Mifs Hodsoll was the owner.

Freavious to 1828 Ficketts had come into the possession of
Thomas Morgan, but at this date it was held by David Morgan
and Thomas Waring in trust for Richard Waring M.D. and his
wife Mary Cecilia who was the daughter of Thomas Morgan. Upon
the death of Dochtor and Mrs.Waring in 18368 and 1872
respectively Ficketts came to their only son Walter Thomas
Waring who died in 18933 and soon after his death the property
was sold.

Washness

In the garlier Cowt Rolls this farm is called Washners,
from 1674 to 1842 Washneast, and Washness appears for the
first time in 1848.

The Rental for 1612 gives Robert Allen as the owner, and
states that it was in his own tenuwe. In 1717 it is recorded
that George Allen who owned a half of this holding was dead,
and that this half had descended to his son John, who already
held one third of the other half of the property. That amnother
John Allen who held the other two thirds of the second half
was also dead, and that this two thirds had descended to
Goorge Gardiner and Mary Allen. This is Aan excel lent
illustration of the conmon practice in those days of dividing
the ownership of property. In 17392 John Allen’'s shares had

been sold to one Mompesson of Brasted:; and George Gardiner 's.

and Mary Allen’'s parts had descended to George Gardiners
daughter Ann, married to George Fawley. Before 1773 Mompessons
portion had descended by Will to John Peach, and from him *to
Edward Feach. This Edward Feach hbhad also bought George
Fawley 's interest; thus the farm was again in one ownership.

99



The Couwrlt Roll for 1799 records the {fact that Edward
Feach had sold the property to William [Louttil. It again
became separated bhefore 1842, when upon the death of William
Louttil a portion went to Mary Magdalen lLouttil, and her
sister married to John Whenman Lewis; and the remainder had
been sold to Thomas Fhillips by William Lopouttil. So it
rémained according to the Couwt Rolls down to 1859, The
lLouttil part being described as Washness farmiy and Fhillips’
portion as l.ittle Washness.

Simons Hawe

Simons Hawe wazs a small property consisting of two fields
about fifLeen acres, situated at the Greenstreet Green end of
the Worlds End lLane. The fact of a house being on this
property is never mentioned in the Rolls; probably after it
was huilt the same description of the holdipng was given in the
Court Rolls as before its erection. At the end of the
sivteenth centuwry, or in the early part of the seventeenth, it
belonged to Thomas Brasier of Cray, but in 1612 it had
descended to his son William Brasier, when one Henry Godden
occupied it.

It afterwards came into the possession of Thomas Mace who
was buried at Chelsfield in 1852, and then passed to Thomas
and George Wakelyn. The Rental of the Chelsfield Manor for the
year 1674 states  that "Haenry Langridge who married Tom
Wakelins Widdowe" paid the guit-rent for that year. The Roll
for 1717 sets out thak John Waklyn the owner of one moiety was
dead, and that his four sons John, George, Thomas, and William
were his heirs in gavelkind. Also that Thomas Wakelyn was
dead, and that bhis moiety had come to his daughter Frances the
wife of Raobert Wyhorn. Refare 1739 the Wyborn's had sold their
moiety to Thomas Bath; and by 1773 he had bheen succeeded by
his son Andrew who died in 1794 at the age of £3 vears. Andrew
was ftollowed by his son John Bath who died in 180& aged 73:
and he was succeeded by his daughter Mary, the wife of William
Clark.

The Roll for 1842 records that William Clark had sold.

“this moiety to Sir George Farrant. As  to the other moiety
which was owned by the Wakelyns in 1717, we have been uwunable
to trace its descent; but the Rental for 1848 states that
George B.Farranmt at that time held both the moieties, and so
it continued down to 1864 when it was bought by George Gill.
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Green Street Green Farm aor Chelsfield Hall

This estate is now known as Chelsfield Hall, but in all
the records of the Manar of Chelsfield it is called Green
Street Green Farm. Edward Ferby who has already been mentioned
as the owner of Fairtrough possessed this property in 16123
bt in 1652 it had pazsed to Richard Summers from Thomas Ferby.

Richard Summers sold it to James Style aof Goddington and
Lillies, James died in 1708, and in 1717 his son John Style
was in possession. Jaohn Stvle was buried here in 1726, and all
his estates passed to James Burton and others in gavellkind.
They sold it to Charles Folhill, who in tftuwn aliensad the
property to John Wells Esquire. John Wells was succeeded by
his brother William, and the latters son Rear Admiral Wells
sold it before the year 1807 to Ueorge MNormanm of Bromley Common
who died in 1830, and was succeeded by his son George Warde
Norman, who was followed by his son Charles in 1882, he in turn
being succeeded by his son Archibald Cameron Norman in 1889.

Coxcroftt

Coxcroft as a separate holding is gone, and the name is
no longer known. It consisted of a House and about thirty one
acres of land. The house stood directly opposite  Gilman
Brimstone farm buildings, where the two cottages now stand.
Some of the land was adjoining the house, and the remainder by
Chelsfield Hill Wood. The earliest record of this property is
to be found on a deed dated 1600, by which William Wakelen the
elder lets the property to his son Thomas (see pp.17 % 149).
William Wakelen must have been bhorn about the vear 1324, as
the register states that at the time of his burial in 1607 he
was 8% years of age. He probably lived at Chelsfield the whole
of his life, as one of his younger sons, Thomas, was baptized
here in 1338, this event being the third entry in our old
register. Fossibly he was the son of the Farish Clerk who was
buried here in 1562.

Upon the death of William Wakelyn this property descended
to his three sons William, Thomas and John. William died, and
John sold his share to Thomas, who thus became the owner of.
the whole. Thomas Wakelyn was buried at Chelsfield in 1640
being 82 years of age. From the parish register it would
appear that he left a large family, also the deeds in our
possession show that some of his children held a ninth share
of Coucroft and other property after his death. It is to be
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prezsumaed from the deeds and Couwt Rolls that all these shares
were acquired by his son George who was born in 1593, for this
George in 1657 settled Coxcrafht upon his eldest son John  who
was about to marry Margaret Dunmoll of Eynsford. The line of
succession of this family can be traced in  thz Court Rolls
down to the year 1717, when one John Wakelin, Malster, sold it
to Thomas Norton the then Lovrd of the Manor; and the latter
dying in 1749 left thise with other property to his sister—-in-
law Ann Mavhew for life, and after her death to her daughter
Catherine Saunders(see p.6&0).

In 1774 Mrs.Saunders sold it with the rest of her

property in Chelsfield to Mary Fuller, and from her it has
descended in the same line as the rest of the Fuller estate.

Walnuttrees

Walnuttrees is another property that has lost its
identity, and is now merged in a larger farm. It was situated
"at or near Wellhill adjoining to the KFings Highway leading

from Chelsfield street to Wellhill". The House was pulled down
at the death of George Dunmall who lived in it for many years.
It stood on the south side of the road leading from Maypole to
Well Hilly by Odds Hill, =0 called because one John Oddbey
once lived there; and opposite the two Cottages standing in
the angle where the road from Woodlands and Maypole join. The
land consisted of about five acres, and now forms part of Kiln
field.

In 1612 it was owned by William and Thomas Wakelyn, with
Nicholas Mace as tenant. Thomas was dead in 16592, and the
property had descended to George, Thomas and William Wakelyn,
the two latter had sold their shares to Nicholas Mace the
tenant ,but George retained his portion. Before 1717 Henry
Chapman had come into the possession of hthe shares which Mace
had bought, but was then dead, and had been succeeded by his
daughter Susanna the wife of Abraham Whiffen,and Sara the wife
of John Wood. George Wakelyn was also dead, and his son George
had inherited his one third share. By 17273 Abraham Whiffen had
bought John Wood’s and George Wakelyns shares, and owned the
whole estate. His only son and heir Thomas Whiffen, a

blacksmith of Farnborough, sold it - in 1768 to Thomas Skeqggs of

Norstead, the latter in 1779 passed it by sale to Thomas Rence
and Robert Cousin. In 1780 it became the sole property of
Rence, who sold it in 1784 to Thomas Smith of Dartford. Jahn
Fuller purchasing it from the latter in 1788, and since then
it has descended in the same way as the other Fuller property.
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Whiteheads

Was this the House from which William Whythed in the year
1468, and a second William Whitehedde in 13500 were carried to
be buried "yn the porche of the chyrch"of Chelsfield(see p.2).
Probably it was, for in the Rental of 1612 it was described as
bging the fee simple of George Smith parson of Chelsfield, and
is described az "conteyningse two and a half acres sometymes
belonginge to Whitaeheads".

An endorsement on an old deed bag clearly locates this
property as standing on the small meadow adicining Durby Lane,
and the road leading from Woadlands to Bucks Cross. The
notr-thern end of Godley Hawe also belonged to this holding,
which consisted of a tenement, barn,stable and orchard.

George Smith sald it to John Gooday of Gray's  Inn,  when
it is described as Whiteheads or Hanning Croft, the latter
name being that of a late tenant. William Harris 1in 1463
bought the property from John Gooday for three score pounds;
and in the following vear he also purchased the holding kEnown
as Dulleys from Thomas Bourman for three score and one poundss
and from this time the two holdings were merged into one.

Pulleys consisted of eight acres, and is the present
Durby meadow alt the far end of Durhy lane, and a portion of
the adjoining field on the east called Wellfield, at one time
the property of Anthony FPehtley.

Upon the death of William Harris the holding descended to
his three daughters Mary Randall, Elizabeth Rumney, and Ann
Haltropp as coheirs. In 1730 Mary Randall sold her one third
share to Edward Rogers of Eemsing, who aliened the same to
William.Young of the same place, whose son James Young in 1748
sold his one third part to Mary Fuller, who was succeeded by
her son John Fuller. In 1739 James Rumney, the husband of
Elizabeth who was then dead, sold his one third share to
William Haltrop, who was already in possession of his mothers
portion. William Haltrop in 1731 sold these twa third shares
o Robert Relph of Chislehurst. Thomas Relph and the other
children of the above Robert sold their inkterest in the
property to John Fuller in 17873, and the whole of these

properties were again in the same ownership, and descended as

the rest of the Fuller estate.

103



Cross Hall

Cross Hall stands in the Village, at the South end of the
School playground. It is probably one of the oldest houses in
the parish. At some time it was a mansion of importance, and
we have been told that formerly there was oalk panelling in the
principal room on the around floor, which has been only
removed in recent years.

r

This house iz mentioned in the Chelsfield Manorial Rental
for the year 1612, but no owners name is given, and we have
been unahle to find any other allusion to it before 1717. In
that year it was in the possession of a father and son, both
named John Heath. The latter about 1739, sold a moiety of it
to one Thomas Bath, but retained the other half.Thomas Bath’ s
moiety passed to Thomas Inzell, and from him to George Golding
and then from Golding to Michael Allwin. In 1773 the whole was
vested in William Eaton, having received it by the Will of
Michael Allwin. William Eaton someshere about 1799 sold  the
property to William EBrooks, and it eventually came into the
family of Yeates, one Mrs.Richard Yeates, widow, being owner
in 1842, It remained in this family for some vears, and during
their ownership the house waz used as a Place of Worship by
two different sects of Monconformists. One of ©Lthe Chapels
being on the ground floor, and the other over it.It is now the
property of the Thompson family, who formerly kept the Village
shop, and the house has been converted into several smaller
holdings.

Kidders

Kidders is another old house that we have been able to
trace by the help of the Chelsfield Court Rolls. It is now
divided into two Cottages one of which is the Woodlands
Laundry. It is first mentioned in the Court Roll of 1717 ,when
one John Brazier "held one messuage, one orchard, and one
close of land called Kidders situate at Bucks Cross"i: a | later
Rental states that Hidders fronted the Rectory gate. The gate
opposite this house was at one time the principal entrance to
the old Rectory, now known as Chelsfield House.

In 1739 it had passed from John Brasier to his son John,
who had sold it to Thomas Insell, he only held it untill 1740
when he conveyed it to George Feeble of Shoreham. A Mrs
Elizabeth Febel of Lullingstone together with her children in
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1799 sold it to John Fuller from whom it descended to the present

owner. This house was at one time used as the Village School as

described in these notes under the head of Education (see p.86).



Rounds

This property was a part of the Court Lodge estate.
Thomas Norton, the Laord of the Manor, begueathed this holding
together with the Manor to his nephew Henry Martin, whao in
1799 by his Will devised a farm in Chelsfield, tenanted by
John Round, in trust for his daughter Catherine Henrietta
Estabroke, — hence the origin of the name by which this
property is now known.

Mrs.Estabroke changed her name by Kingz sign manual to
that of Rowellszs. Mrs.Rowells trustees sold the property to
John Hill of Chelsfield, and his son William Hills 1in 1868
left it to Josiah Groombridge, who sold it in 1880 to William
Waring.

The Eleven Cricketters

This Inn as already mentioned stood in, the Village. In
the Court Roll for 1739 it is described as "The Cricketters®
formerly owned by Abraham Whiffen and John Ward but then the
property of John Winson, and in the occupation of John Creavy.
In 1814 it was =still a Fublic—-house, and owned by Edward
Everest, but it had blossomed out to the full title .of YThe
Eleven Cricketters ", and about this time it passed into the
handes of Edward Shkinner. The 1828 Roll atates that the
messuage formerly called "The Eleven Cricketters", and then
occupied as a shop, kept by Richard Clarke was sold by Skinner
to John Hills. William Hills succeeded his father John Hills,
and his tenant Henry Thompson followed Clarke in  the grocers
business. Thus the "Eleven Cricketters" is identified with the
present Village shop kept by Mrs.Neal.

The Wheatsheaf
This was another old Inn just on the boundary of the
parish of Chelsfield, in fact the old house stood partly in
Chelsfield and partly in Halstead, on the ground that was
erxcavated in making the railway cutting just on the east side
of the bridge by Mr.Bowens timber—-yard, also known as

Marylebone Bottom. The house was closed as an  Inn  about the.

vear 1845. The Wheatsheaf was originally a part of Cadlets
farm, and in 1798 was the property of one John Goodhew, who in
1799 conveyed it to his nephew Captain Feter Fennell of the
East Fent Militia.
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Feter Fennall upon his death left "The Wheatsheaf Inmn ,
and a small quantity of land to John Shilling the younger, the
son of John Shilling the elder, who had been a private soldier
and servant to Captain Fennell. The Captain obtained his
discharge from the Militia, and had made him his bailiff or
steward. John Shilling the younger in 1839 sold this small
property to the trustees of Thomas and Sarah Waring. After the
Ipn was closed John Bowen in 1846 became tenant of the house
and land, and one of his sons is still  the occupier at  the
present time (1914), which is another illustration of a long
tenancy in Chelefield.

Eveshole

This small property concisted of a messuage and garden
called Eveshole at Maypole, but is nmno longer known by this
euphonious name; perhaps for good reasons. Its boundaries are
carefully given in a deed dated 1720, from which, and also
from the Cowt Rnlls, it is evident that the two cottages on
the south side of the road leading from Maypole to Well Hill,
and to the east of the Blundell property, now represent the
above.

This holding was held by the Eve family (hence the name)
certainly fraom 1612 to 1717, and probably before the former
date. In the latter year one William Eve sold it to Charles
Lewis of Mereworth, who in 1812 conveyed it to John Fuller.

Original start of vol.II. Chelsfield Parochial Notes 1204-1914

Rough Garden or Rose Garden with Sextees

Fough Garden consisted of three Cottages and four acres
of land, being the first three houzes on the west side of the
road after passing the Wells at Wellhill., Sextees ‘which
embraced sisxteen acres is represented now by Systedsfield, and
that part of Owen Wood adjoining the White Cottage. The actual
spot on which this Cottage was built formed a part of Sextees;
but the back premises was a portion of Rough Garden.

Sextees was within the Manor of Chelsfield, while Rough’

Garden was within that of Hewetts. The Couwt Rolls of the
former only date from 18612, whereas those of Hewetts go back
to 15173 therefore it has been possible to trace Rough Garden
further back than Sextees.
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In 15920 one William Brasier was in possession  of  Rough
Garden, but in 16326 he was dead, and had been succeeded by
Francis Brasier, who also accaording to the Chelsfield Roll for
1652 owned Sextees, and the two parcels from this period were
certainly one holding. Francis Brasier died before 1666 and
was followed by John Brasier, John was dead in 1673 and it had
come to his widow Joanna, who afterwards married Robert
Woodrofe. Mrs.Woodrofe was succeeded by her son Francis
Bragier of West Wickham, who by his Will dated 1711 devised
Rose Garden and Sisteads to his wife Ann for life, and after
her death to his daughters Rachasl and Faith. It will be seen

that the name Rough Garden had now been changed to Rose Garden,

probably it being considered that the latter was hetter sound-
ing than the former. '

Upon the marriage of Faith Brasier to Lacy Hawes of
Feston in 1720, her moiety of the property was settled upon
the trust that her trustees should sell.

Fachael who lived with her mother at Shoreham sold her
share in 1718 to her brother William Brasier. In 1742 Hannah
Hayward one of the daughters of the above William Brasier sold
her share of the property to her sister Mary Brasier, when the
property is described as Rose Garden obtherwize Sistead of
twenty acres and three cottages lately erected.

In 1755 the daughter of the said William Brasier sold her
share to Allen Cowper of St.Martins in  the Fields, Tallow-
chandler. Allen Cowper had already married widow Brasier.

Ey a Will dated 1776 Martha Hawes, who was probably a
daughter of Faith Brasier, left her share of the Chelsfield
property to Richard Cowper, and by this devise five eights of
the estate became vested in Richard Cowper, as he had already
inherited several other shares.

t

In 1801 John Fuller bought the above five eights,
together with the other three eights of Rose Garden otherwise
Sisterds. Thus this property had been in the possession of the
Brasiers and their descendants for certainly two hundred years.
It is still in the hands of John Fuller s family.
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Mount Hall or Walnuttress

This praoperty was originally described in Deeds as
Walnuttrees House with ssveral fields containing together
twenty one acres; also a barn, and stable, with two other
fields called Breche and Children Croft of about forty acres
in all. It is quite evident that there were two houses named
Walnuttrees, as the two properties have separate title deeds,
with a different descent of owners, and it 1is equally clear
that they stood not far apart.

Mount Hall is first mentioned by this name in a deed
dated 1778, and it is probable that this name was substituted
for Walnuttrees to prevent confusion with the other, when the
new part of the house was built in 17735. The back part of the
fouse is much older than the front, and possibly the former is
the old Walnuttrees. Breche and Childrens Croft can be
identified with Eridgestile field and the surrounding land; and
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it is suggested that "Bridge’ is simply a corruption from ‘Breche’.

In 1390 it was in the possession of Thomas Dunmole, a boy
of fourteen vears of age, who had succeeded his father of Lhe
same name. In 14612 it was in the ownership of John Tresses;but
before 1632 it had come Lo the Revd George Smith,the Rector of
the parish, for at that date he had sold it to William Goodday
according to the Court Rollsz. From William Goodday it descened
to his son John and then to the lattere brother Roger Goodday
who iz buwried in the Chancel of the Church (aee p.91). Upon
the death of Reger in 1674 his daughter Ann came into the
property, she in turn being succeeded by her cousin John
Goadday (see p.171 re: The Gonddays), who in 1734 sold it to
Thomas Chapman, who was at that time the tenant in occupation;g
he left it to his zon William Chapman who probably built the
new portion of the house. William by his Will dated 1778 left
his real estate to John Round and Thomas Judd upon  trust for
his nephew William Riggs in  tail male. William REiggs was
succeeded by his son James who sold the property to John
Fuller in 1818.

Leach Croft

l.each Croft is another small property gone and forgotton. .
It consisted of a House, buildings, and five acres of land;
four and a quarter acres being the southern end of Carters-
field and abutting on the road leading from PBucks Cross to
Maypole: and the other three quarters of an acre being in
Bucks Cross Orchard ajoining.



In 1612 it belonged to James Stile, and was still in  the
possession of & James Shtile in 1652 (see Lillies p.94). Before
1717 it had come into the ownership of Henry Soana who had
married James Style’'s daughter, and he had been suceeded by
hiz son Henry. In 1739 this last Henry Soane wasz also dead,
and had devised the property to Richard Stileman. In some way
it passed from Stileman to John Nash of Sevenocaks, for in the
year 1768 he sold it to Mary Fuller. The house and buildings
had been demolished hefore this last purchase, as the fact is
endorsed aon the purchase deed.

Riddenshaw

A very small property that has disappeared, sa far as the
house, and its name is concerned, within the last few vyears.
It orginally consisted of two houses with gardens situated on
the Hewetts side of the "White Hart ' Inn at Ro-peep.

It formerly belonged to Robert Allen of Hewetts, but upon
his death hefore 1773 it had become divided into two moieties,
the one in the ownership of James Allen, and the other in the
possession of Ann Brooks. It iz the latter one, which was
represented by the old cottage lately pulled down, that
concerns these Notes.

Ann Broolks died before 1799, and her son Thomas BErooks
succeaeded her, he hy his Will dated 1812 left Riddenshaw to
trustees with instructions that each of his six sons  should
have the option of purchase in the order of their ages, and in
the event of all refusing this option, then the property was
to be sold. In 18322 onege of the sons, Thomas Brooks, bought the
property, and by his Will dated 1848 left one half to his
grandson Thomas Reeves, and the other hal$ to his son Stephen
Allan Brooks for his life, with remainder to his grandson
Thomas Brooks Emery. In 1867 John Walton of Halstead bought
both of the moieties from the above; and in the same year
‘resold the whole to William Waring.
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Pax

This property has already been decscribed in these notes
(spe pbh2). In 14612 John Brasier the son of Richard Brasier was
the pwhner, but at some time between the years 1619 and 1629 it
had passed to William Browne, and from him it deccended as
already stated in giving an account of the Browne family when
describing their Monument in the Church.

Wheatfields

As stated when describing Alice Bray there is no property
answering to this name at the present time. It now being known
as Maypole Cottage (see p.32).

In the year 1448 one Alan Typon conveyed it to Master
William Feter, Fhilip atte Well, Nicholas Sybbyns, and Simon
Wodeward the younger. In 1479 Simon Woodeward of Chelsfield
sold it to Richard Bonnannter and Alice Bray, and they in twn
in 1487 passed it on to John Jettor of Chelsfield yeoman and
Agnes hise wife, to Zir John Fercyvale kEnt, and John Bonannter
(see pp.131 &% 13Z3). In the year 13503 Jobn Jettor appears to
have sold it in his sole right to John Beverech of Chelsfield,
Robert M™Marshall of Orpington, and William Cowper of
Farnborough.

Henry Beverych by Will dated 1309 leaves this house and
garden to his wife for her life, with remainder to their
issue, and in default of such issue it was to be sold, and the
proceeds to be devoted to praying For the gsouls of Allen
Colegate, and Anne his wife, for the souls of the Testator and
Eleanor his wife, and for all persons souls (zsee p.l134). It
would seem that there was issue, but the descent is a little
difficult to follow just at this time, since in 1567 Elizabeth
Beveredge releases her House at Chelsfield to Richard Brasier.
In 1623 Francis Brasier the son of one William Brasier 1is in
possession; but in 1642 this property is settled wupon the
marriage of Emma, the only daughter of John RBrasier, with

Frrancis French of Seal. It remained in this family for many.

vyears, for in 1768 Elizabeth Beringhton of Seal the only
daughter of Francis Berrington, who was the only son of Robert
Berrington of the Middle Temple and Ann his wife, formerly Ann
French, sold it to Mary Fuller, the great grandmother of the
present owner (see p.l19).
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The Porcupine Inn

This House is in the parish of Chelsfield, and stands at
the top of Richmore Hill. It is quite distinct Ffrom the
present Inn bearing the same name, which is located close by,
but in Halstead parish. It remained an Inn until about the
vear 1814, when it was converted into a farm—house, and which
it still remains. In 1696 a Chelsfield Manorial Rental tells
us that the "Forguepyne Inn" was kept by one Thomas Ward, and
probably it was the property of a member of the Ash family,
but before 1739 one Edward Ash had sold it to Jobhn Lansdell,
who in turn alienated it to Lord Vere Beauclerl, he being the
third son of the first Duke of St.Albans. lord VYere was an
Admiral , and had ditinguished himself in several commands
(Hasted I.32). Lord Vere Beauclerk sold it to George Arnold
Arnald; and it afterwards passed through two generations of
the Carzelets. The Rev.James Cazelet sold it about 1821 +to
Alderman Atkins, in whose family it still remains.
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Hamlets of Chelsfield

Fratts Bottom, Greenstreet Green, Well Hill, Maypole, and
Bo—-peep are all Hamlets, either large or small, in the parish
of Chelsefield.

Pratts Bottom It is suggested that this Hamlet derives its
name from a family of that name, wha held land there according
to both the Chelsfield and Hewetts Court Rolls certainly from
1590 to 1694, and probahly for a longer period. Some of this
land was held in comparatively recent years by the late
Richard Hickmott, who lived in the small house on the north
side of the road, not far from the present Schonls. The Fratts
also owned Hempstalls in the sixteenth century.

Greenstreet Green We find this Hamlet mentioned in a Will
dated 1322, and in the sarliest Court Rolls of the Manor of
Chelsfield: and it is fairly obvious that the name is derived
from its position and swrounds.

Well Hill This part of the parish, without doubt, derives
its name from the fact of there being wells on the hill. How
long this has been so, we are unable to say, but probably for
very many vears. The Parish Register under the date of 1579
contains this entry "Alice Fletcher wydow of Wel hil buried";
and the Hewetts Court Rolls for the years 1390 and 1626 record
that "Roughgarden in Chellefield" was near the well there.

Maypole We have been unable to find any mention of this
Hamlet earlier than 1720, when the name appears in a deed, nor
any authority for it being so called, and we can only suggest
that in olden days the May games, with a May-pole were held
near this spot.

BRo—peep The first reference to this Hamlet which we have

been able to discover iz in a Chelsfield Court Roll dated
ie21, but proably the name was known long before this. We
think its origin may be accounted for in the following way.
‘Bo’ or “Bok’ is first found in English in 1430, and is an
exclamation intended to swprise or frighten. In Johnsons
Dictionary (1766) it is explained that "To play Bo-peep is to
look out and draw back, as it frightened", and in a larger

edition of the same work (1I816) it is stated that ‘BO° is an’

interiection derived from ‘Bo’ an old northern captain of such
fame, that his name was used to terrify the enemy; and that
‘Feep’ is to look slily. Now this small group of Houses is

snugl ensconced in the angle of the roads; and may it not be
sug%eéted ‘hat some humorc@us person likened this éosition to

the definition of Bo-peep? and hence the origin of the name.
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Wages, Rents, Cost of living etc

We often hear it discussed, whether the poorer classes
are better off now than in former days. During the past two
centuries wages have risen considerably; so have rents and the
necessaries of life, therefore it is difficult to determine
mwhaether a labourer was freer from the cares of this world some
hundred vears ago, than he is now. We have in our possession
fArm books dating from the year 1720, and from these it would
appear that rents, wages, meat etc have risen in price at an
even progression, bult that the price of wheat has varied in  a
very marked manner. We expect therefore that the price of
wheat is the true key to the workman’'s position.

From 1720 to 1800 the price of wheat grown in, O near
Chelsfield varied from 245 to 17&s per quarter. Even in a
given year the price varied much, and the following prices are
the highest recorded in each year from these farm books. In
1720 it was Z&/74d; in 17320 24sy in 1740 64s; in 1761 265 in
1770 50Q=3; in 1787 S4s; in 1800 176s. During these eighty years
a labourer at day worlk was paid about 8s a week:; and his rent
was from £2.2.0 to £3.5.0 per annum. Fork, mutton and
sometimes beef was sold by the farmer to his workmen, as well
as to the Butcher. During this period amutton varied from 2d to
3d per 1lb; pork from 3d to 4d; and beef in the year 1724 was
sold at 2d per 1lb. VYeal varied from 2d to 3d per 1b.

From the year 1800 to that of 1855 there was a
considerable rigse in the price of meat, rents, and wages, but
nothing like the same variation in the prices of wheat. The
latter in 1804 was 112s; in 1808 100s; in 1815 12053 in 1823
S4s; in 1830 it averaged 7053 in 1855 it averaged 7é6s. During
this period day woark was paid for at a rate from 10s to 19s
per week. Mutton cost b&6d to 7d per lb: pork from A4d to 7d
per lb: and rents varied from £2.10.0 to £5.5.0 per annum; the
farmer evidently being paid by old tenants; and as they dropped
out their cottages were re-let at a higher rate.

Women were paid what we should now consider very small
wages. In 1720 "Goodey Verrall', and several other ‘Goaodies’
were paid 7d per day for picking hops. Mary Brown in 1770
earned &d a day at stone-picking; but in 1808 a womans wages
had risen to 1/-s per day. A boy in 1808 was paid 4d a day.

In 1816 this memorandum was made "Faid Grahams for drying
Hops 15 shillings a week, allowed him a gallon of beer for a
day and night and a glass of gin every morning'. In 1820
William Johnson was paid 4s for two days cutting down timber.
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Refore thrashing machines came into use; the corn was
thrashed out by men in the barns by hand, and in 1805 the
price for this work was 45 a quarter, but in 1808 it had
fallen to 2/6d. This worl: found constant employment for some
of the workmen, and during a winter they threshed large
quantities of corn. We have found the following records:

. qr bus
"172%. Wheate Thrased in ye lawer barn
by Wm Williams &6 7
by George Rinwood and Johnson 76 3

) PN

hetween Nov 2nd % Feh 24th
In ye upper barn Wm Williams 8 3z

1720 Wheate in ve lower harn
by Wm Cheesman % Wm Williams 124 6"

In 1780 Jamas Bunn waz paid £1.10.0 for catching 180 moles,
which works out at exactly 2d per mole. '

Woodcutting was another employment for the men during the
winter months, and it 1i1s curious to note the difference
bhetween the prices paid two hundred years aga, and those of
the present day. The following is an account for this kind of
worlk, and we have added the prices of the present day.

"Decem 24 1724 Thos Yeomans wark price per bundle
1724 1912
Hurdle rods % stakes 21 bundles 0.0Z2.7 2d 2d
fagget rods 4 bundles 0.05.8 2d not cut now
broom staves 8 bundles=s 0.01.4 2d 2d
bushes 175 bundles 0.03.6 2s per 100 2/6s per 100
stack wood 2 cord of woodQ.05.3 1/6 per cord 4s per cord
kids 44 0.01.10 45 per 100 8/4d per 100
canhoops 13 bundles 0.02.02 2d =d
hoops Z&6 bundles 0.06.0% 2d Zd
bavins 444 0.10.05 Z/4 per 100 4s per 100

2.00.00
the hedgin round the wood?
To 157 rods att 2d ye rod> 1.06.02 2d per rod 4d per rod"

To the prices of 1912 must be added the sum of 2d for '
every shilling earned, for what is Eknown as wood—money. In
former days a woodcutter carried away a certain amount of wood
for his own use. This practice was stopped, and in lieu of the
perquisite the 2d was added to each shilling earned.



In olden days some of the men on a farm were hired by the
year, principally wagoners and mates. They were lodged and
boarded in the farm-house. Their wages varied as the following
esttracts from the old books will show:s '

£. s. d.
"1741 Mich. Bargined with Will Barton for a year at 3. GS. ©
Bargined with Alex Martin for a yr 5. 9. 0

Oct ye 2 Rargined with Edward Simmon to
serve tell St.Mich next at 10. 0. O
St.Mich Bargened with Jas Barton for a year 6. 0O O
Sep ye 29 1742 Bargined with Wm BRarton for a yr 3. 11. O
Pargined with James Lunn for a yr 6. 0L O

Frobably those that were paid the larger wage were the
waganers, and the others the mates or carter-boys. The wages
were not always paid in money, but partly in clothes, as these
entries will show:

"Decem 29th 1729 Fortunatus Ringwood in money 0. 10. 6
March 22th In money 0. 10. 6
May 17th In money O. S. O
June £28th In money 0. 10, 6

for a sack to make a coat 0. F. 0
Sep 22th In full 3. &L. &
S. 5. 0

It -will be seen that the addition in the above account is
wrong, it should be £35.6.0, but probably the agreed wage was
£5.5.0, and Ringwood was well named ‘'Fortunatus’ (lucky).,

"Jan 22nd 172930 George kEnow for 4 shirts 0. 14. =
March 6th paid for making shirts Q. 1. ©
May for a pair of stockings and 2s &6d money Q. S. 6
Sep 29th in full : 2. ?. =

' 4. 0. 0

Here again the addition is 10s wrong, this time it is
against the boy. We wonder whether - George Fnow..ed it?
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Maidservants were also hired for the year and their wages
were paid in a very similar manner as those of the men; thus:

"Act 8 1726 Anne RBarton came

May 8 1727 Ann Barton in money 1. 5. 7
June 16 In money 0. 8. O
July 10th In money O. 7. ©
Fecd in full _19. 4

Z. O 00"

"Octob 28th 17373

Mary Stringer began her yeare and is
to have three pounds pr anum

£ s d
June 12th  In money Five Shillings
and musling fower shillings % sixpence 0. 9. 6
for a piece of cheque for an aproan 0. 1. 8
June 18th For an ell of Holland?
three vards of wmdging 32 0. 2.11¢

The above account was never finished, having no entry
atter June 18th, and one wonders whether Mary left her
situation before her vear was ended, or what became of her.

There are several other memoranda of advances of wages
both in money, and clothes etc, but no complete account for a
full yeari; the following one was never completed.

"June 29th 1724 Martha Ellis

a pair of shoes 0. 2. 6
for yarn 0. 1. 2
Sep 29th paid Tho Skinner for a pair of shoes 0. 3. 0
Jan 2nd paid for gound and makeing 0. 12 10,
March &th for a pety coat and two shifts 0. 09. o¢

The following entry is of some interest as showing the
kind of wage a nurse recieved in former days.

"1728 Oct 14. Sarah Hawkins came to nurs my father at
25 per week'.



Old Chelsfield Families
still resident in the Parish (19214

i 4
Thetre are at the present time (1914) several families in
Chelsfield which have been connected with the parish for very
many vears, and it is now proposed to write a few lines
concerning them.

Alwen

The name of this family is variously spelt Alwin, Alwyn,
and Alwen; and the first record of them is to be found in the
old reqgister under the year (&873; when John the son of William
and Elizabeth Alwin was baptized. According to the Court Rolls
for the Manor of Chelsfield, one John Alwyn in 1717 owned two
Messuages at Frattis Bottom,but before the vyear 1773 his
daughter Elizabeth had sold them.

In 1724 William Alwyn possessed a property called ‘Sole
Field’' in Chelsfield"; and father has been succeeded by saon
certainly up to the year 1859 when the last Court Baron for
this Manor was held, and we believe the family are still in
possession of it. The above William Alwyn also held land
called ‘Beechcroft’ a portion of the Manor of Hewetts for a
short time about the year 17Z1.

DOne Michael Alwin owned ‘Crosshall’ for a short period of
time about the year 1773. The name of this family appears 1in
the Farish Register at irregular intervals, and praobably they
have not always lived in the parish.

Arrow

Calib the son of Calib Arrowes was baptized at Chelsfield
in 176403 and it is noticeable how often the name Caleb appears
in subsequent years. In 1807 Caleb Arrow was a tenant within
the Manor of Chelsfield, heing the owner of a cottage at Green

Street Green, but in 1848 it had passed into the possession of’

a Mres.Young.
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Dunmall "

The Dumnmalls are another very old Chelsfield family, and
their name iz also spelt in several ways, as Dunmolle, Dummol,
Dunmul , Dunmull, Dunball and Dunmoil; but it must be
rememberad that it was a commaon practice in former days to
write names phonetically. In 1583 according to our register
Jane Dunmolle married Thomas Byrsey, and this is the earliest
record of the family. The Court Roll for the manor of Hewetts
far the year 13720 contains an entry that one Thomas Dunmale
owned property that now forms part of Mount Hall, having then
lately succeeded his father (see p.108). A Rental For the
Manor of Chelsfield dated 1612 contains the fact that John
Dunmole held certain woodland called Dowlands Gosse,and other
lands in Chelsfield amounting to twenty acres. In 1652 he had
been succeeded by his son also named John, and soon after this
date this property passed away from the family.

In the vear 1657 one Margaret Dunmoll of Eynsford married
George Wakelin of Cox Croft (see p.101). The Family are
constantly mentioned in the Register down to the vyear 17103
but from this date there is a break until 176%; when their
name again appears with great reqularity. A coktage with a
small quantity of land on Wellhill near the ‘KHent Hounds” Inn
was owned by several generations of this family up to the year
1872, and we believe some of the land was held uwuntil a much
later date.

French

The family of French can be traced in the CHelsfield
Records from the vear 1412, when according to the Rental for
the Manor of Chelsfield one James French owned “"One Tenement
and Orchard there late Colgates"; which property was probably
situated at Maypole. In 1852 his son Thomazs was in  possession
of it, but soon after that date it seems to have passed from
them.

John EBrasier who died in 1646 states in his Will (see
P.16%5) that Francis French had married his daughter, and that
he was to have one moiety of his tenements and lands. Francis
French’'s share was three closes of land %c called UWheatfields
(see p.110). This property continued in the name of French for

some years; but the Chelsfield Court Roll for the year 1717

records the fact that one Francis French was dead, and that
Elizabeth his widow had married Thomas Selby who held
Wheatfields in her right. The name of French appears with some
regularity in the parish registers from the vear 1617 down to
the present time.
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Graves

The Graves can be traced in the parish from the year 1708
when one Anne Graves was buried here,and their name constantly
appears in the register from that date up to the present time.
They were the tenants of PMrs.katherine Saunders land, and
afterwards of Gilman Brimstone farm certainly from 1759 to
1871.

td

James Graves served as Churchwarden in 17863 and other
members of the family as Overseer on many occasions between
the years 1762 and 1847,

In 1814 Widow Graves was the owner of two cottages at
Greenstreet Green, which her late husband had purchased, and
this property was still in the possession of the family when
the last Court Baron was held in 1859. They have also held the
property at Sluts Hole since 1842, and probably for a longer
time.

Hills

One Richard Hills was buried here in 1719, and from that
date down to the present time the name constantly appears in
the various records relating to Chelsfield. Frobably there
were two families of this name.

For eighty years, covering the period between 1785 +to
1865, the Village Fost O0ffice was hkept by members of this
family (see p.l4).

John Hills gerved the office of Overseer in 1810, and his
son William in 1844. The Chelsfield Court Roll for 1799 states
that John Hills was possessed of a '"Messuage called Durtnall
and six acres of land called NMNewfields". The name of this
house can be traced back to the year 1652, but we have been
unable to locate its position. Before 1814 John Hills had
purchased ‘Rounds and about the vear 1848 ‘The Eleven
Cricketters’ (see p.103). These properties with the addition
of the cottages and land at Worldsend remained in the family
of Hills until the death of William in 186&8

Verrells

The name of this family, who have been harness—-makers.

here for several generations, appear in the parish registers
on several occasions between the years 1757 and 1769, then it
disappears until 1840, but from this date it is fairly
frequent up to the present time.
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Whitehead

This name is variously spelt Wythed, Whythede, Whitehedde,
Whitehead, and Whitehead, who appear to have belonged to the
Yeoman class. The earliest recorded member of this family was
one William Whythed who desired to be buried in the Church
porch in the year 1468, and the next is another’ William
Whitehedde who in 1500 wishsd to be buried in the same place
(see p.2,103). In 1488 it is recited in an old deed that
William Whythedde owned lands near Hewetts; and in 1509
William Whitehead was one of the Trustees under Alice Bray’'s
will (see p.54). The Farish Register records the fact that in
158592 one John Kingsland, whose family continued in the parish
for more thamn a century, maried Dorothy Whitehead; and entries
concerning the Whiteheads continue with great regularity down
to the year 1&09. In an earlier part of these notes we have
suggested that the above members of this family dwelt at the
house callsd "Whiteheadzs’ (see p.103).

We have been unable to find any trace 'of this family in
Chelsfield firom the year 1609 to that of 1705; possibly they
lived over the barders of the parish; but from the latter date
they again appear in the reqgisters down to the present time.

The following old families are still resident in the

parish, viz - The Thomas’ traceable from the year 1699 to
that of 1704, when they disappear until 1740, but Ffrom this
last date they again appear with some reqularity. The

Morgans from 1724; and the Miles from 1766.
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0ld Chelsfield Families — no longer living in the Parish

The Key to the Pedigree of the Petleys

. This a suggested Fedigree of the Fetley family sd far as

they were connected with the Manar of Hewetts, Hewetts farm,
Little Hewetts farm, Bucks Cross farm, Gilman Brimstone farm,
and land at Goddington, all being in the parish of Chelsfield.
It has been compiled from Hasteds History of Kent, the Court
Rolls of both the Chelsfield and Hewetts Manors, the Farish
Register, 0ld Desds, old HWills, and the WVisitation of EKent
1663-166&8, and from a Fedigree after the year 1770.

1. Richard Petley probably of Downe Court Manor (Hast.I.116).
2. William Petley the second son of Richard(1). He purchased
the Manors of Halstead, Hewetts, and Hever from Lord John Gray
and Dame Anne his wife in the year 13522, He was a man of
considerable property, since by his will, after malking
provision for his wife, he left the above Manore with his land
called Coalgates and Skypps, and his land at Greenstreet Green
Goddington, Farnborough, Bromley, Lewisham, Cudham, and
Chelsfield (some near the Farsonage, probably Bucks Cross) and
his property at Bedington and BRardon in Surrey to his eldest
son Stephen. To his younger son Thomas he  bequeathed Filston
in the parish of Shoreham. He died in the year 1528, and with
his wife Alice was huried at Halstead (Hasted I.320; His Will
p.129, 0Old deeds).

3. Stephen Petley the eldest son and principal heir of
William(2). He resided at Halstead. He was twice married: lst
to Lora daughter of ....EBrown of Sussex, by whom he had six
sons: William, Thomas, and four others whose names are not
given. He married Znd Anme Skelton by whom he had two sons
Ralph and Mathew. His name appears as the lLLord of the Manor of
Hewetts in the Cowt Rplls for the years 13540 and 15435, He
died in 1547. (Hasted I.320:; Will 1522; HC Rolls 1540 & 19545).
4. Thomas Petley the second son of William(2), and succeeded
to Filston in Shoreham. He appears to have had no connection
with Chelsfield (Will 1522). _

S Jane Petley the daughter of William(2) she married John
Hodsoll (Will 152%2). .

6. Johan FPetley the daughter of William(2) who in his Will
first describes her as "Johan Allen my daughter", and later on

as "Johan Marshe other wyse called Allyn my daughter”"(Will 1522).

7. Eme Petley daughter of William(2), she married ...Brasyer
(Will 1522 .
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g. William Petley son of Stephen(Z) but not the eldest, by
his first wife Lora. He lived at Chelsfield, and owned PBucks

Cross, and land at Gaoddington. He was twice married: lst +to
Joan who was buried at Chelsefield on December 9th 1578; and
?nd to Alice who survived him. William was buried at

Chelsfield on January 7th 1600 (Will 1399: Rolls: Register).
9« Robert Petley son of William(8). He died in his father’'s
lifetime (Will 1599).

9A. Alice Petley daughter of William(8) by his first wife.
She wazs baptised at Chelsfield on the 3th  April 1962, and
married Edward Weite, or Write, at the same place on the 11th
June 13599 (Will 15999; Register).

i0. Elizabeth Petley daughter of William(8); she married
cw.Collins (Will 1399).
11. Thomas Petley son of William(8). His father left him

two annuities amounting to £2.13.4, provided he should “behave
himself godlie and honeslie" in the judgment of two of his
Kinsmen named in the Will. (See pp.Y% % 148). He appears to have
survived bis father but a short time, as he was buried at
Chelsfield on June 17th 1603.(Will 1599: Register).

12. Amy Petley daughter of William(8) by his first wife.She
was baptized at Chelsfield Sept 8th 1567, and married Thomas
Brasier there on MNMovember 11th 1597, (Will 15%99: Register).

1Z. William Petley son and heir of William(8) by his first
wife. He was baptized at Chelsfield on April 1st 15763 and
married Mary the daughter of Anthony Saxbye of Westerham in

146073, He inherited Bucks Cross farm, and the land at
Goddington from his father. In the rental of the Manor of
Chelefield dated 1612 his house is described as his “Mansion

House". (Will 1599: 0ld Deeds: Reqgister).

14. Anthony Petley suceeded to Bucks Cross on the death of
his father William(13). He was baptized MNovember B8th 1604, and
buried July 25th 14695 at Chelsfield. (0ld Deeds: Register).

15. Robert Petley appears from the Reqgister to have been
the brother of Anthony(14). He Jjointly with his mother Mary
held Rucks Cross after the death of Anthony(14). He was
baptized at Chelsfield on February 13th 14614, and buried here
June 22nd 16468. His wife’'s name was Joane,but it seems he left
no childreny since by his Will he left his real property to
his "Cosen Robert Smith": failing him to his "Kinsman Richard
Thomas of Deptford (see p.%96: Deeds:Register:Will 14668 p.166).
16. Elizabeth Petley daughter of William(13). She was
baptized at Chelsfield on September &th 1607. (Register).

17. Amy Petley daughter of William(13).EBaptized ? September
and buried 13 December 1610 at Chelsfield (Register).

18. Maria Petley daughter of William(13). EBaptized at
Chelsfield on Apiril Sth 1612 (Register).
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19. Thomas Petley was the eldest son of Stephen(Z). He lived
at Halstead, and held that Manor, and those of Hewetts and
Hever. He married Mifs Hamond of St.Albans, and died in the
vear 139Z%. (Hasted).

20. Four other sons of Stephen(Z) by Lora Brown. (Hasted).
21. Ralph Petley son of Stephen(Z)by Anne Skelton. (Hasted).
22. Mathew Petley son of Stephen(3) by Anne Skelton(Hasted).
23 Thomas Petley was the cson of Thomas(19). He owned both
Halstead and Hewetts Manors. He married Mifs Folly of Shoreham
in Kent. (Hasted: Rolls).

24. Thomas Petley son of Thomas (23) and succeeded him to
the Manor of Halstead, which he sold to Sir Thomas Watson.This
Thomas Fetley died without issue. (Hasted: Will 162&6:Deed 1664).
25. Edward Petley son of Thomas(27) who left him the Manor
of Hewetts. He also owned Gilman Brimstone farm, which he alse
probably inherited from hig father. He died about 16326, as
this is the date of his Will. Me left some of his property for
the benefit of his brother Thomas(24) and his heirs:; but
failing heirs the trustees in 1464 sold the Mansion called
Hewetts, and some 111 acres of land: but the Manor, and Little
Hewetts with Gilman Brimstone remained in the Petley family,
being in the posseszion of one Thomas Fetley who 1s next
described. (Will 1624: Deed 1&464: Rolls).

26. Thomas Petley who succeded Edward(23) as stated above,
was of Filston in Shoresham. There is no doubt but that he was
descended from Thomas(4), bult we have been unable to trace the
descent, hence a breal: in ouw pedigree. He was twice married:
lst to Dorothy the daughter of Michael Bashford, or Reresford
of Westerham: and 2nd to Elizabeth the daughter of Ralph Came
of London. He was the owner of the Manor of Hewetts, and
Gilman Brimstone Farm. (Hasted: Rolls: Vieitation 146Z3-1668).
27. Ralph Petley was the son of Thomas (Z6). He married
Frances Folhill of Obford. He owned the Chelsfield property.
(Hasted: Rolls: Visitation 1663-15668).

28. Michael Petley was the son of Thomas(26).He married Mary
daughter of Sir Edward Gilbowne of Shoreham, FKent. He is
described in the Visitation of 16&43-14648 as being of Filston in

Fent. He left a son Thomas of Filston(Visitation 1466%3-68;Deeds).

29. Ralph Petley son of Ralph(27) and succeeded him in the
Hewetts and Gilman Brimston properties. Frobably this was the
Ralph who was Sheriff of Kent in the year 1680, then described
as being of Riverhead. He married Jane daughter of Sir John
Beyliard of Chidingstone, bart. He died in the year 1704, aged’
59, and was buried at Savenoaks. (Hasted: Rolls: Vis.l14663-48,
Fedigree).

0. Francis Petley son of Ralph(27). (Vis 166Z7-1668:Rolls).
Zl. Richard Petley son of Ralph(27). (Rolls)
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T2, Thomas Petley son of Ralph(29). Upon hiz marriage with
Margaret daughter of Thomas Gifford in 1624, Gilman Brimstone

was settled. He was also owner of Hewetts Manor. He died
before the vear 1731. (Hasted; Fedigree; Deeds; Folls).

2Z. John Petley son of Ralph(29).He married Jame Lockyer (Hast:Fed).
Z4. Ralph Petley son of Ralph(29).He died a bachelor. (Hasted: Fed).

5. Jane Petley daughter of Ralph(2%). She married..Fowler. (Hast.)

6. Gifford Petley son of Thomas (Z2). He died abroad when
voung and unmarried in the lifetime of his father. (Fedigree).
Z7. Ralph Petley son of Thomas(32) and succeeded him. He

died a bachelor, and intestate in 1731. His Chelsfield and
Sevenoaks properties dezcended to his first cousin Charles
Fetley (39). (Hasted: Raolls: Fedigree).

38. Jane Petley daughter of Thomas(ZZ). She died single in
the lifetime of her hrothers (Foedigrees).

9. Charles Petley son of John Fetley(3I3). He succeesded hisg
first cousin Ralph(Z7) to the Manor of Hewett=s, and Gilman
Brimstone as above stated. He was Storekeeper of the Ordnance
at Chatham. In 1732 he married Elizabeth the daughter of
Robert Faul fo the County of MNorthumberlarmrd esqg., and then
lived at Riverhead. He died intestate in July 1745. It would
appear from the Court Rolls, and also from old deeds that hisg
widow Elirabeth succeeded him as l.ady of the Manor of Hewetts,
and to the farm of Gilman Brimstone; but she may have aonly
acted for her sons who were minors. (Hasted:Rolls:Deeds:FPedigree).
40. Jane Petley daughter of John(Z3).Died unmarried(Hast.Fed.)
41. Ralph Robert Carter Petley son of Charles(29). He and
his brother John (4% were joint heirs of their father, and in
178% they executed a Deed of Fartition, by which Ralph took
Little Heweths and the Manor. It is not quite clear how Gilman
Brimstone was apportioned, but upaon the death of John(43), he
John left Gilman Brimstone to his mother in fee. R.R.C.FPetley
married Elizabeth ...... , and died in 1788 (Hasted:Deeds:Ped.)
472, Charles Petley <cson of Charles(Z?9), he died in January
750, about five vears old {(Fedigree).

47Z. John Petley son of Charles(Z%) - see R R C Fetley(41)
above Mrs.Elizabheth Fetley sold Gilman Rrimstaone to' John
Fuller in 1806. (Fedigree: Deeds).

44. Twisden Petley son of Charles(I?9).He died in 1778 when
about twelve years old. (Fedigree).

45. Three daughters of Charles(Z9). Names not given(Pedigree)
46. Charles Carter Petley son of Ralph Robert Carter (41),
and succeeded his father to llittle Hewetts, and the Manoriboth’
of which he sold in 1826 to the Trustees of the late John
Fuller for the benaefit of Sarah his daughter, and then the
wife of Thomas Waring. John Fuller had already bought the
Mansion House and Hewetts farm in 1781.



Thus the connection of the Fetley family with the parish
of Chelsfield came to an end; after having certainly existed
for some three hundred years and probably longear.

Wakelens

The family of Wakelen were long resident in this parish,
and their name is to be found in the records extending over &
period of two hundred years;and probably they were inhabitants
of this place lang before the records commence; but they have
now been extinct in Chelsfield for many years.

The bapti=s=m of one Thomas Wakelen, dated 1558, is the
third entry in ow oldest register; and entries relating to
this family occur with great regularity down to 14682. From
this last year down to 17446 the name is spelt Walklin in the
register, but evidently they are the same family, since the
Cheslfield Cowt Rollz, and Deeds give the proper spelling of
the rmname during this time, and it is cuwrious to note that this
same period nesarly coincides with the incumbency of Mr.Fetty,
and probably the entries in the register were  written
phonetically. This suggestion is strengthened by the fact that
after 17352 the name is spelt Wakelin down to 17&6, when it
disappears from the register.

As already stated in these notes members of this family
were Churchwardens on several occasions, and one John Wakelin,
who was the occupier of ‘FPax’ farm served the office of
Dverseer in 173%. The regisher informs us that "Thomas Wakelen
ye parish Clerke" was buried here in 1362,

No less than three members of this family were original
Trustees of the Collet Charity, see p.156, William and Thomas
who waere the joint owners aof ‘Coxcroft’; and Walnuttir-ees, and
George who was either a brother of the above, or a son of one
of them. This George was alzo a Trustee of the Colegate
Charity.

They were small landowners in the parish. In addition to
the already mentioned ‘Coxcroft’ and ‘Walnuttrees’, ‘Simons
Haw’, was in the possession aof the family for a time. (see
pp.101, 102 & 100).



Brasier

. The Brasyers, or Brasiers were inhabitants of the parish
at the time when ouwr Chelzfield records commence, and probably
they were here long before.

The name can be traced in the register from its beginning
in 1958 down to the year 1728, and in the Court Rolls to 1739.
After this date the family appear to have left the parish, as
no further entriez relating to them cna be found either in the
FRolls or Registers, with the sclitary exception of a marriage
in 1810,

They were a numerous family evidently belonging to the
Yeoman clazs, being landowners and of =some importance. They
intermarried with the Fetleys and Stiles, both of which
families also owned land in this place. They served the office
of Churchwarden on several occasions; and William Brasier of
‘Rough Garden’ was one of the original Trustees of Collets
Charity, while his son Francis was a Trustee of Colgates
Charity, and it was probably this Francis that was returned as
a ‘Suspect’ during the Commonwealth (see p.10).

In 15467 one Richard Brasier purchased ‘Wheatfields and
Betses’'; which property remained in the family until the vyear
1768 (see p.110). "'Rough Garden and S8Sextees’ was in their
possession in 1390, and remained in the family until 1801 (see
p.104&). They ware the owners of ‘Fax’ in 1612 (see p.110). One
John Brasier held ‘KHidders® in 1612, and & member of the
family also named John, who followed the trade of shoemaker,
was living there in 1717, but it had been sold before the year
17739, It would seem from the fact of their having parted with
their property, and also from the occupation of John, that at
this time they had come down in the social scale.

At various times they also held ‘Simons Haw’, a house and
land at Greenstreet Green; and ‘'Larke House’ ' a property which
we have been unable to identify.

-



